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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholder,

The past year was a tumulluous one and il has been very difficult to close projects and get new business in our
main markets which were all affected in some manner by the Euro crises,

This has led the Board to evaluate the potential of the fleet management arm of the Group and we have in fact
agreed to put such products for sale on the international market, This would lead to the maximisation of the
product potential, We therefore immediately instructed management to locate a buyer. We have been targeting
pariners who are both a concrete prospect to use owr products while potentially generating further sales within
their community. We are currently in discussion with two world leaders in the realm of fleet management. They
are both major international entities in the mobility field. Closing a transaction will produce synergies in both
the technical and marketing fields, enabling the Fleet Management arm of the Group to achieve its full potential.

One of these prospective buyers have performed a due diligence exercise on our products to confirm their
potential and agreed a fair value for this part of the business. In fact they confirmed a value which is higher than
the value recorded on our books, We are continuing to negotiate to ensure that we agree to something which

will maximise value to all shareholders.

The price at which the assets held for sale are being valued has been agreed to with one of the prospective
buyers and is considered to reflect its current fair value. Though a deal still has not vet been finalised in the
expected timeframes, the Group is still commilted to completing the transaction as soon as possible. Whilst
appreciating that there is alwavs inherent uncertainty as to whether a sale will actually materialise, as | have
already stated. we remain committed to ensure that the best transaction which maximises shareholder value is

closed.

As ] reported in my statement which was published with the last financial reports, cash flow has been the main
challenge during this tough time and a tight cash flow management regime has been rigorously enforced. The
cash flow sitnation was further exacerbated by the significant reduction in the free-cash {low generated from
operations which decreased to EUR 211K, 1 am convinced that the work we have done over the 201 1/2012 to

restructure our cost base will impact positively on our cash flow.

Macroeconomic conditions remain uncertain with downside risk, mainly as a result of the European economic
slowdown. Confidence is anticipated to remain fragile and European private sector fixed-investment actlivity is
expected 1o remain modest. However a number of non-European economies are forecast to show a degree of
growth and we have been positioning ourselves to be present in these countries with T am glad to report some
modest success which we are working hard to capitalise on.

It’s been a challenging vear for my colleagues and I want to thank them for the remarkable effort they have put
in. They have supported Logus through one of its most difficult periods with much hard work and considerable

personal sacrifices.

In April 2012, one of the directors, Lawrence Zammit, resigned due to his appointment as Chairman of Malta
Enterprise. His contribution and advice were invaluable and [ would like to thank him for his support during his
tenure as a director. Mr Zammit has been replaced by Mr Roland Scerri, our deputy CEC as a director,

In closing my report, [ would like to reflect that economic cycles are nothing new and that they do not end all at
once. 50 1 ask for your patience in the months to come. We already saw improvement in our performance in the
last six months of 2011 and we will continue to take all the corrective actions at our disposal to ensure that even
faced with tough times Logus will continue restoring cash flow and eventually return value to its shareholders.
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

ear Shareholder,

I would, first and foremaost, like to apologise for the delay in publishing the financial statements for the period in
review. This was mainly due o technical reasons relating to the potential sale of the Fleet Management IPR and

husiness.

Our Fleet Management products are now a mature suite of products that have been tried and tested in the field.
Our customers continually express their high level of satisfaction in terms of service. reliability, improvements
in efficiency and cost reductions that they have achieved through the deployment of our Fleet Management
products in their organisations. While on the one hand we have managed to finance the considerable R&D effort
to create and refine these products to their current levels we have been severely compromised in our capahilities
to market our products due to the capital requirements that international marketing implies.

To facilitate this. the Board of Directors, took a decision to put the Fleet Management IPR and business up for
sale to a suitable partner and directed the management team 1o investigate the possibility of attracting potential
bidders. To-date discussions with a number of major entities have been initiated and we are trving to secure the
best deal for the Group whilst taking into account the interest of all shareholders. The Fleet Management assets
including IPR and current contracts have been classified as assets held for sale. The management’s assessment
of their value is based on offers under discussion with potential investors and this amount is greater than the

actual book value.

This approach would produce synergies in both the technical and marketing fields enabling the Group to be
more successful in pursuing potential new business while providing much needed cash flow to the group.

We have also identified other business components that perform well as standalone components and we are
positioning them in a manner that would enable us to find suitable partners to provide cash injections and

growth in these areas.

In the past year the intensified economic downtum has continued to make companies wary of investment in all
areas as they struggle to preserve cash. This has meant that closure on prospective contracts that were already
taking a significant amount of time to close is being delaved further. As the results show the Group has been
experiencing testing times, due (o the international economic turmoil and the high cost of completing

SoVErnment projects.

Furthermore, projects from our European markets have ground to a halt due to the on-going financial
uncertainty in these countries. However this has not diminished the Group's sales and marketing efforts because
the Board believes that the Group needs to maintain a presence, not only with its current clients but also for
prospective ones, so that when they eventually turn the corner Loqus will be the name they will think of for
“mobility and fleet management solutions’. The Group’s prospects and clients are constantly reassuring us that
our products remain highly desirable and that there are other circumstances which are causing them 1o delay
product take-up. These include internal reorganisation, other capital projects and general slow-down in their

own business.

Projects that normally produce cash are currently in a state of flux: this is having a severe negative effect on our
cash flow. On top of this, the majority of the on-going non annuity projects are for Government entities. These
are normally not precisely specified, with open ended conditions, and are proving to be extremely problematic
to finalise and achieve client sign-off. Payment conditions on these contracts are so heavily weighted towards
the client that the project ends up being funded from the Group’s cash flow until practically all the way to
completeness. On a positive note most of these projects are nearing completion and by the third quarter of 2012
75% of the projects should be completely closed off.  These projects then enter their maintenance mode which
is where we traditionally start o recover our margins.
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ﬁROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW - continued

Group Operational Performance

Way back in 2009 we had reported that the Group had adapted its strategy and decided to increase our focus on
projects, mainly in the form of Government tenders. We embarked on this strategy as soon as the financial crisis
began to affect our customers. As expected, tenders are complex. very low on margins and difficult on cash-
Nlow, however, they have allowed us to preserve and increase our skill base. Our past experience has shown us
that the difficulties inherent to projeclts have allowed us to hone our skills and expand into new areas
internationally. To this effect we already see new opportunities for us in e-forms and advanced document
management, two areas in which we have invested heavily. These projects have had a negative impact on the
bottom line with an operating loss of EUR 353K being reported when compared (o an operating profit of just
over EUR | million reported in June 2010.

Retaining a satisfactory level of service to our client base while delivering projects and still maintaining our
product base bhas proven demanding. This has given rise to diverse management challenges which we are
addressing through proactive mtervention and ensuring that we are providing adequate empowerment to key
individuals when needed.

The overall performance of the Group for 2000:2011 saw turnover at EUR 4.1 million compared to EUR 4.4
million recorded for the year ended 30 June 2010. This was mainly due to one-time fees on projects during the
year ended 30 June 2010, However, during the year under review, the Group secured revenue of EUR T50K

relating to hardware sales.

Costs have increased in line with revenue due to purchases relating to the hardware sales made by the Group.
Although we have reduced our investment in generic R&D, this has been replaced with more directed R&D
aimed at giving more short term gains and a significant amount of work in on-going projects which were
deemed strategically important. During the year under review EUR | 10K less was capitalised when compared to
the same period last year. The economic instability has led management to make an analvsis of our customers
and the balances they have with the Group and to this end we have provided for more than EUR 300K of the
balances owed by our customers, Financing costs also increased as a result of additional facilities obtained from

our Bank.
Competitive Environment

As already mentioned. to help counter the negative competitive environment we have been targeting partners
who are both a concrete prospect to use our products while potentially generating further sales within their
community. This relationship has produced a number of leads and proposals, some of which are promising. We
believe that our products remain highly desirable and that, when the circumstances delaving product take-up are
surmounted, we will start to see an influx of new clients.

During the period in question we have embarked on enhanced staff development and training through the
European Social Fund Training Aid Framework. Unforiunately, the funds promised through this framework are
taking longer than expected to be received, thus further impacting our cash flow.

Capital Requirements

The major challenge that the Group is facing is cash flow; while revenues are still being held at good levels, the
Group has been experiencing a slowdown in payments from Government and international customers who are
also facing a challenging financial situation. Tight management of creditors and debtors has vielded good
results. with our suppliers backing the Group. Since not enough cash surplus is being penerated from operations,
the Group had to refer to its Bankers in order to assist during these difficult times. They have continued to
support us by releasing funds tied in to performance guarantees and bid bonds in favour of Government tenders.

i1
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW - continued

Capital Requirements - continued

This has helped to improve our liquidity by more than EUR 200K, Senior management has been in continuous
communication with the Bank and in fact an additional shori-term letter of credit for EUR 266K has been
granted to the Group to cover the Fisheries tender, We have also been granted temporary excess on our balance
in order to ease the cash flow problems encountered during difficult months.

The Group is attempting to take advantage of the VAT Amnesty, which was announced in the 2012 Budget
speech, however in order for this to be met arrears that were due on previous VAT periods had to be cleared. 4
repayment program was agreed with the VAT Department and a further shareholder loan was obtained to try
and settle the amounts due.

Significant Events

Afler June 2011 the Group also sold on the Racelink project which had been acquired through our purchase of
the Alemea business in ltaly. As pan of this deal Logus will continue to feature prominently on marketing
material for a number of classic car races including the prestigious Mille Miglia event.

Farward-Looking Strategy

Even though the year under review has been extremely difficult, the period since July 2011 is proving to be even
tougher. There are many challenges still to face, especially on our pre-existing liabilities. The nature of the
projects we are currently undertaking, coupled with the current global financial situation. leads us 1o be cautious
in our predictions of when we are going lo achieve profitability. Though we remain committed to deliver our
projects on time and within budget, break-even will not be achieved within the next financial vear, however, we
are aiming for a recovery by June 2013,

Whilst recognising these difficulties, we remain focused on improving our results and actively seeking new
opportunities both in Malta and overseas.

Conclusion

I would like io take this opportunily to thank my colleagues for their unceasing lovalty and dedication. It is
through their commitment and hard work that Loqus is able to deliver and explore new avenues even though we
are going through a difficult period, evervone has continued to show high levels of professionalism and
dedication. I am indeed lucky to have such a loyal team.

I would also like to thank Roland Scerri my Deputy for the long hours and punishing travel schedule that he
subjects himself to enable us 1o move forward on projects in Malta and overseas and Marie Claire Portelli. our
CFO, for the long hours and sheer dedication coupled with her considerable technical skills.

Furthermore I must extend my appreciation to our Bankers, HSBC, who have continued to fully support us.
Their professionalism and business services are second to none, enabling Logus to continue operations and

successfully meel deadlings.

Loqus remains focused on attaining profitability, to allow our clients, employees and shareholders to bhenefit
from the syppart they have so loyally shown the Group throughout this difficult period.

v
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GENERAL INFORMATION
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2011,

Principal activities

The Group is primarily involved in the provision of fleet management, back-office processing, consulting and
ICT solutions.

Dividends
The Directors did not propose the payvment of dividend.

Review of the business

The Group incurred a loss before the effect of taxation amounting to EUR 1,396,516 (2010 Profit: EUR30,665),
Naon-controlling interests incurred a loss amounting to EUR28,806 (2010 loss: EURS8,447) during the current
vear and the losses atiributable to the shareholders of the Company amounted to EUR1.367,790 (2010 profit:
EURI06,148). Further information about the results of the Group is provided in the statement of comprehensive

income on pages 14 to 13,

The Company incurred a loss before the effect of taxation of EUR 73,172 {2010; Loss EURG60,581). Further
information about the resulls of the Company is provided in the statement of comprehensive income on page 20,

Generating new product sales from our European markets have proven to be very difficult due to the on-going
financial uncertainty in these countries. However this has not diminished the Group’s sales and marketing
eftorts because the Board believes that the Group needs to maintain a presence, not only with its current clients
but also for prospective ones, so that when they eventually turn the corner Logus will be the name they will
think of for ‘mobility and fleet management solutions’. The Group’s prospects and clients are constantly
reassuring us that the Group’s products remain highly desirable and that there are other circumstances which are
causing them to delay product take-up. These include internal reorganisation, other capital projects and general

slow-down in their own business.

A positive aspect of the perceived strength of these products is that the Board is currently in discussions with
two major entities with regards to their potential investment in relation to the Fleet Management arm of the
Group. These assets have been classified as held for sale.

A more detailed review of the operation of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings for the vear under
review, and an indication of the likely future developments,-are given in the Chairman’s Statement and Group
Chief Executive’s Review.

Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the vear ended 30 June 2011 were those listed in the
General Information.

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Companies Act, Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malta reguires the Directors to prepare financial statements for
each financial pericd which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company as at the
end of the financial vear and of the profit and loss for that vear.

2
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT - continued

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities - continued
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that;

»  appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent

judgements and estimates;
= the financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

as adopted by the European Union;
= the financial statements are prepared on the basis that the Group and the Company must be presumed o be

carrying on its business as a going concern; and
= account has been taken of income and charges relating to the accounting year, irrespective of the date of

receipt or payment,

The Directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and the Company and to enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act. Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malta. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention

and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Auditors

The re-appointment of Ernst & Young Malta Limited will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting,

The Directors’ report was approved by the Board of Directors and was signed on its behalf by:

ECH CONTI

J
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF
PRINCIPLES OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Introduction

Pursuant to Listing Rule 5.94 of the Listing Rules issued by the Listing Authorily, Loqus Holdings p.lc. (“the
Company™) as a company whose equity securities are listed on a regulated market should endeavour to adopt the
principles of good corporate governance contained in Appendix 5.1 of the Listing Rules (hereinafter “the
Code™). In terms of Listing Rule 5.94 the Company is bound to include a report providing an explanation of the
extent to which it has adopted the principles and thus the Company is hereby reporting on the extent of its
adoption of the principles contained in the Code.

The Company acknowledges that the Code does not dictate or prescribe mandatory rules but recommends
principles of good practice. However, the Direclors strongly believe that such practices are in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders and that compliance with the principles of good corporate governance is
not only expected by investors but also evidences the Directors’ and the Company’s commitment to a high

standard of governance,

General

The Company is a holding company and does not itself carry on any trading activities, It owns a number of
subsidiaries which together form the Logqus Group (hereinafier the “Group™) and it is those subsidiaries that
carry on trading activities. The directors are of the view that pood corporate governance is the result of a mix of
checks and balances which are tailored to suite the Company and its business. The directors firmly believe that
whilst best practices are of general application. certain structures aimed at safeguarding these best practices may
not be objectively the best structure in the context of a company whose size or business require otherwise.

The Company’s governance principally lies in its Board of Directors (the “Board™), responsible for the overall
setting of the Group’s policies and business strategies.

The Company has adopted a corporate decision-making and supervisory structure that is tailored to suit the
Group’s requirements and designed to ensure the existence of adequate checks and balances within the Group,
whilst retaining an element of flexibility, particularly in view of the size of the Company and the nature of its

business.

In general. the directors believe that the Company has in place appropriate structures to achieve a satisfactory
level of good corporate governance. The directors also believe that an adequate system of checks and balances is.

in place.

Below, the directars set forth in further detail the structures. checks and balances, and processes in place, as well
as the manner in which these contribute towards achieving the goals set forth in the Code.

Compliance with the Code

These principles deal mainly with the role of the board and of directors.
Privciple |

The directors are of the view that for the period under review the Company has generally complied with the
requirements of this principle and the Code provisions.

The board has, during the period under review, shown the necessary leadership of the Company and has in place
mechanisms to ensure that it obtains the requisite information for it 1o exercise its role and functions. The CEO,
as a director of the Company, attends board meetings of the Company. as do other senior members of
management as and when requested by the Board.
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DIRECTORS' STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF
PRINCIPLES OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Compliance with the Code — continued
Principle 2

In compliance with this principle, the Board has separated the functions of CEC and Chairman, with the
Chairman leading the Board whilst the CEOQ leads the executive arm of the Company. The CEOQ is accountable
to the Board. Thus, the directors believe that the Company is in compliance with principle 2.2 of the Code.

Principle 3

During the period under review, the Board was composed of six (6) Non-Executive Directors and one (1)
Executive Director. The Company’s organisational structure contemplates the role of a Chief Executive Officer
{the “CEQ™), a position which is occupied by Mr. Joseph Fenech Conti, who is an Executive Director having a
seat on the Board of Ddrectors. The Company’s CEQ is currently a member of the Board and attends Board
Meetings in such capacity whilst other Executives attend when necessary and upon invitation of the Directors,
The presence of the CEC assures that the Directors have direct access at meetings of Directors lo the person
having the prime responsibility for day to day operations of the Company and the implementation of polices that
allows effective discussion and the availability of all the information necessary to carry out their functions in the
best possible manner. In this respect, the Directors feel that the principle set forth in the Code is substantively
met by means of this arrangement which allows the inter-action of Non-Executive Directors and Executives.

As stated above, the Board of Directors during the period under review comprised seven Directors elected by
the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting, For the vear under review, the Board has met 6 times, A table
ouilining attendance is set forth hereunder:

Directors Date of first appointment Meetings attended
Mr. Waller Bonnici — Chairman 23 October 2000 6
Mr. Michazl Soler T August 2008 )
Mr. Lawrence Zammit T August 2008 5
Mr. George Gregory 3 November 2008 5
Mr. Joseph Fenech Conti T August 2008 3
Chev. Anthony P Demajo 20 July 2003 3
Mr. Nicholas John Rendell 29 January 2010 3

The meetings held during 2010 and 2011 were atlended either personally or by means of an alternate.

Board meetings concentrale mainly on strategy, operational performance and financial performance. The Board
also delegates specific responsibilities to the CEQ and the Audit Committee which operate under their
respective formal terms of reference. Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
who is also the legal counsel to the Board and the Company.

Directors may. in the furtherance of their duties, take independent professional advice on any matter at the
Company's expense. Directors and senior ofTicers are informed and are aware of their obligations on dealings in
securities ol the Compary within the established parameters of the law and the Listing Rules,

Each such Director and Senior Officer has been provided with the code of dealing required in terms of Listing
Fule 8.45.

n
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF
PRINCIPLES OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Compliance with the Code — continued

The Board of Directors has nol undertaken an annual evaluation of its own performance and that of jts
committees and of individual Directors. The Non-Executive Directors” performance is not formally evaluated by
the Company whether on an individual or collective basis. Moreover, the attendance at Board Meetings as
shown above is indicative of the level of commitment of the Directors. The Directors believe that in view of the
limited size of the Company and its resources, a formal independent evaluation of the collective and individual
performance of the Directors by independent third parties is unwarranted as it is not likely to add significant
value to the manner in which the Board currently operates and could be disproportionately costly.

For the purposes of Code Provision 3.2 requiring the Board to report on whether it considers each non-executive
director as independent in line with the requirements of that Code provision, the board considers that the
following non-executive directors were independent during the period under review within the strict meaning of
the Code: Mr Michael Soler. Mr George Gregory, Mr Lawrence Zammit and Mr Nicholas John Rendell. Mr
Waller Bonmici (indirectly) and Chey Anthony Demajo both hold issued and voting capital in the Company.
This notwithstanding, the Beard considers that both the said directors have the requisite skills, experience and
integrity to act independently and impartially as directors of the Company.

Primciple 4

In terms of this principle, it is the board’s responsibility to ensure a system of accountability, monitoring,
strategy formulation and policy development. Whilst there are matters which are reserved to the Board to
determine within the Group, the board believes that this responsibility includes the appropriate delegation of
powers to management and the organisation of an executive team in a manner that is designed to provide high
levels of comfort to the directors that there is proper monitoring and accountability apart from implementation
of policy. Senior Executive Management is presently entrusted to the CEOQ, who reports to the Board. The link
between the Executive Management and the Board is attained through the attendance at Board Meetings of the

CEQ, as a member of the Board.

Though the Company has not set up a formal executive committee, meetings led by the CEOQ, between members
of top management take place regularly,

As part of its corperate governance structures the Company has also established an Audit Committee in line
with the reguirements of the Listing Rules. Unlike the provisions of the Code, which are not mandatory in
nature. the Directors acknowledge that the requirement of having an Audit Committee in place is an abligation
under the Listing Rules, The principal rale of the Audit Committee is the monitoring of internal systems and
controls. In addition, unless otherwise dealt with in any other manner prescribed by the Listing Rules. the Audit
Committee has the responsibility to monitor and scrutinise Related Party Transactions, if any, falling within the
ambits of the Listing Rules and to make its recommendations to the Board of any such proposed Related Party

Transactions,

The Audit Committee was, during the period under review, composed of Chev. Anthony P. Demajo {Chairman
of the committee and Non-Executive Director of the Company), Mr. Lawrence Zammit (Non-Executive
Director of the Company), and Mr. George Gregory, (Non-Executive Director of the Company). Nevertheless,
the Audit Committee has the power and authority under its terms of reference to summon any persoen to assist it
in the performance of its duties. The Audit Commitiee has met four times in the financial year under review,
The Directors are of the view that the composition of the Audit Committee meets the requirements of the Code
on independence as well as having a member with knowledge in accounting andfor auditing, since Mr, George
Gregory is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Following such declarations, such
persons are also considered to be independent Directors for the purposes of the Code.

Principle 5

The Board is of the view that it complies with the requirements of this principle.

6
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF
PRINCIPLES OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Compliance with the Code — continued

Principle &

The CEO is appointed by the board and enjoys the confidence of the board. The CEOQ is responsible for
recruitment and appointment of senior management, which is done in consultation with the Board.

The directors have access to professional advice as and when required, with a view to discharging properly their
duties as directors.

Principle 7

The board has not appointed a committee for the purpose of evaluating its own performance, and does not at this
point intend to do so.

Principle 8

The Board has taken steps to appoint a remuneration committee which is aimed at making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of the Company’s executives.

Principle 88

The Company has not appointed a nominations committee, and does nol believe that at this point it is necessary
io do so.

Principles 9 and 10

During the peried under review, the Company has communicated 1o the marker through company
announcements providing the market with information aboul reportable events. The Company also
communicates to the market and its shareholders through its general meetings.

The Company’s website is also utilised as an avenue for imparting information to the market.
Principle 11
In the context of board meetings. a Director having a conflict of interest is required to inform the other members

of the Board, and may be inviled to abstain from voting on a particular matter in which he is conflicted, as well
not to be present whilst the matter is under discussion. The Board is of the view that this secures substantive

campliance with the rationale underlying this principle.

Terms and conditions of contracts negotiated with relating parties are subject to review and approval by the
Company’s Audit Commitlee.

As at reporting date, the direct interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company were as follows:

Number of shares

Chev Anthony P. Demajo 1,350,730
Mr. George Gregory MIL
Mr. Michael Soler NIL
Mr. Lawrence Zammit NIL
Mr. Nicholas John Rendell NIL




LOQUS HOLDINGS P.L.C.
Annual Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 June 2011

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF
PRINCIPLES OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Compliance with the Code — continued
FPrinciple 12

The Company understands its obligation lowards society at large and, within the current financial constrains of
the Company, attempts to fulfil this obligation. The Company is fully aware of its obligation to help preserve the
environment and endeavours to respect the environment,

The Company considers itself to be a good employer and promotes open communication, responsibility and
personal development. Furthermore, the Company maintains a staff development program aimed at providing
training to stafT to assist in their development. Through investing in its people and their professional growth, the
Company believes that this will be beneficial to both its shareholders and stakeholders alike,

The Directors consider that during the financial year under review the Company has put in place appropriate
struciures to comply with the principles and underlying spirit of the Code. Nonetheless the Directors shall
endeavour to keep the situation under regular review as appropriate.

Non-compliance with the Code Provisions

The Directors set forth below the code provisions which they do not comply with, together with an explanation
for such non-compliance:

Code Provision Explanation

2] Though the functions of CEQ and Chairman are carried out by separate persons, the
division of responsibilities has not been established in writing. In practice. however, the
two roles are clearly separated and defined.

4.2 The Board has not developed a succession policy for the future composition of the board.
The existence of a deputy CEO somewhai reduced the need for such a policy.

4.3 The Company has not as such organised any information sessions as réquired in this
prowision though the board regularly discusses the matters set forth in this provision during
board meetings.

4.7 For the period under review, the Company has been unable to comply with its publication
duties within the stipulated deadlines. However the Board has sought to inform the market
of the reasons for delay.

6.1 Directors are not offered an official introduction programme. in particular since directors
are re-elected from vear to year and are persons who are experienced in directorships.
However, new directors are given informal induction on the company and its operations.

6.4 Though no “formal’ systems are in place for the development and fraining of management
and employvees, as a fact management and emplovees are frequently offered training

opportunities.
No formal ‘systems’ to monitor morale are in place, though the size of the company allows

for constant informal assessment of stafl’ merale. Furthermore, no formal suceession plan
for senior management is in place.

The Board is of the view that the size of the Company and the board itself does not warrant
the establishment of this committee. The Board is of the view that the size of the Board is
such that it is in a position to evaluate its own performance.

-




LOQUS HOLDINGS P.L.C.
Annual Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 June 2011

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF
PRINCIPLES OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Non-compliance with the Code Provisions — continued

BA During the period under review the Company did not have in place a remuneration
commitiee. However the Company has taken steps Lo appoint such a committee with the
intention of the said committee making recommendations to the Board on mattets within

its remuil.

&R The Board has not appointed a nominations committee, particularly due to the
requirements relating to nomination in the Articles of Association of the Company.

9.3 The memorandum and articles of association of the Company do not provide a mechanism
for resolution of conflicts as referred to in this provision,

Internal Control

The Beard is ultimately responsible for the Company's sysiem ol internal controls and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Such a system is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, risk in order to achieve business
objectives. and can provide only reasonable, and not absclute, assurance against normal business risks or loss.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board reviews the effectiveness of the Company's system of internal
controls,

The key features of the Company’s system of internal control are as follows:
Chregamisation

The Compuny operates through the CEQ, who is the most senior Executive, with clear reporting lines and
delegation of powers.

Conteol envivanmert

The Company is committed to the highest standards of business conduct and seeks to maintain these standards
across all of its operations. Company policies and emplovee procedures are in place for the reporting and

resolution of improper activities.

The Company has an appropriate organisational structure for planning, executing, controlling and monitoring
business operations in order to achieve Company objectives,

Risk identification

Company management is respensible for the identification and evaluation of key risks applicable to their
respective areas of business. The Audit Commitiee’s mandate also includes the continuous assessment and
oversight of such key risks,

General Meetings

The general meeling is the highest decision making body of the Company and is regulated by the Company’s
Articles of Association, All shareholders registered on the regisier of members of the Company on a particular
record date are entitled to attend and vote at general meetings. A general meeting is called by 14 days notice.

At an annual general meeting what is termed as “ordinary business’ is transacled, namely, the declaration of a
dividend, the consideration of the accounts, balance sheets and the reports of the directors and auditors, the
election of directors, and the appointment of auditors and the fixing of remuneration of directors and auditors.
Other business which may be transacled at a general meeting (excluding the general meeting) is dealt with as
*Special Business™.
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF
PRINCIPLES OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

General Meetings — continued

WVoting at general meetings takes place by a show of hands or a poll where this is demanded. Subject to any
rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any class or classes of shares, on a show of hands each
shareholder is entitled to one vote and on a poll each shareholder is entitled to one vote for each share carrying
voting rights of which he is a holder. Shareholders who cannot attend a meeting may appoint a proxy.

Business at the Company's AGM will cover the approval of the Ammual Report and Audited Financial
Staternents. the election of Directors and the appointment of auditors and the authorisation of the Directors to set

the auditors' remuneration.

Further Information

To comply with the recommendations of the Code as regards the disclosure of Dirgctors’ remuneration, the
Board has opted to disclose an aggregate figure. For the financial year under review the aggregate remuneration
o which the Directors were entitled amounted to:

Directors of the Group  EURGH, 000
Directors of the Company EUR42 000

The remuneration of the CECQ is disclosed in the Key Management Personnel note to the financial statements.

The Non-Executive Directors have no arrangement for profit sharing, share options or pension benefits as part
of their remuneration,

Bowrd of Directors

The Board is aware of its corporate social responsibilities in terms of the Code and seeks to adhere, as far as
possible within the various constraints inherent in the Company, to its obligations set forth in the said Code.

In general the Directors believe that the Company has adopted appropriate structures to achieve an adequate
level of good corporate governance, together with an adequate system of checks and balances in line with the

Company’s requirements.

The Memorandum and Adicles of Association of the Company regulate the appointment of the Directors.
Appointment of Directors is reserved exclusively to the Company’s sharcholders. Every shareholder owning, or
group of shareholders who own together, not less than 10% of the ordinary share capital are entitled to appoint
one Director for every such 10% holding.

The Chairman, Board of Direciors and Auditors are all appointed by the shareholders during the Annual General
Meeting (AGM). All Directors may be removed from their post either by the shareholder who appointed them
or else by the passing of an ordinary resolution in the general meeting. The Directors hold office for a period of
one year, unless they resign or are removed or are appointed for periods other than one vear. Once the period
stated in their letter of appointment lapses, the Directors would be eligible for re-appointiment.

Dealings by Divectors armd Senior Officers

Directors and Senior Officers are informed and are aware of their obligations on dealings in securities of the
Company within the established parameters of the law and the Listing Rules. Chev. Anthony P, Demajo was
appointed Designated Director of the Company for the purposes of the “Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions”. There were no reported breaches of such obligations during the vear under review.
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF
PRINCIPLES OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Further Information — continued
Uaoing concern

In accordance with Listing Rule 5.62, the Direclors have considered the Company's operating performance, the
statement of financial position at year end. and they have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources o continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, in preparing the
financial statements, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements setl out
on pages 14 to 36, Note 2 to the financial statements, details the going concern assessment,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LOQUS HOLDINGS PLC

We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Logus Heldings p.lc, {(*the Company™) and of the Group
of which the Company is the parent, set out en pages 14 to 56, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2011 and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

As described in the Directors™ Report set out on pages 2 to 3, the directors are responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union and the requirements of the Companies Act, Cap. 386 of the Laws
of Malta, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on conducting the audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auwditing, Because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs, however, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
provide a basis for an audit opinion,

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

We were unable to verify that the assets classified as held for sale are being marketed at a price reasonable in
relation to its current fair value. Consequently we were unable to ascertain the classification, The assets held for
sale amounted to EURS,659, 139 which represents 208% of Group’s net assets as at 30 June 2011,

The Group has not assessed the recoverable amount based on a value in use and we were unable to verify by
alternative means that the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount of the Group’s netl assets.
Consequently we were also unable to verify that the recoverable amount exceeds the carrving amount of the

investment in subsidiaries of the Company.

Furthermaore. as at 30 June 2011, the Group was in breach of bank covenants and all amounts outstanding to the
bank were immediately due and payable. The Group incurred a loss for the vear of EUR1,396,396 and if the
Group had classified the non-current assets held for sale with the intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment, the current liabilities exceed its current assets by EUR2.499, 540, To date the bank has continued with
its support to the Group but has not formally commitied to extend. Moreover, we have notl been provided with
formal plans and detailed cash flows to satisfy ourselves with the appropriateness regarding the use of the going
concern assumption in the preparation of the financial statements.

Drisclaimer of Opinion

Because of the significance of the matrers described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs, we have
nol been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the financial statements.

Arenben i of =
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LOQUS HOLDINGS PLC - continued

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Listing Rules issued by the Malta Listing Authority require the Direclors to prepare and include in their
Annual Report a Statement of Compliance providing an explanation of the extent to which they have adopted the
Code of Principles of Good Corporate Governance and the effective measures that they have taken to ensure
compliance throughout the accounting period with those Principles.

The Listing Rules also require the auditor to include a report on the Statement of Compliance prepared by the
Directors.

We also have responsibilities:

¢ Under the Companies Act, Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malta to report to you if in our opinion:
- The information given in the Directors’ report is not consistent with the financial statements.

- Adequate accounting records have not been kept.

- The financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records.

- We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made in the financial statements,

giving the required particulars in our report.

s Under the Listing Rules to review the statement made by the Directors, set out on page 9. that the business is
a going concern together with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary.

Because of the Disclaimer of Opinion, we are unable to report to you in respect of these responsibilities.

This copy af the audii report hay been signed by
Anthary Douwblet for and an behali ol

Ermst & Young Malta Limited
Certitied Public Accountants

19 Seplember 2012
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LOQUS HOLDINGS P.L.C.

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 211

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - Group

as at 30 June 2011

ASSETS

Non-carrent assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment in associate

Current assets

Invenlories

Trade and other receivables
Income tax recoverable
Cash at bank

Assets classified as held for sale

TOTAL ASSETS

2011 2010

Notes EUR EUR
10 137,508 411,485
11 373,736 5812258
13 - =
611,244 6,223,743

15 9,776 10,484
2,326,904 2,111,327

- 7,199

21 75,480 320,051
2,412,160 2.449.061

4 5,659,139 -
8,071,299 2,449.061

8.672,804

B.682,543

The accounting policies and explanatery notes on pages 24 to 36 form an integral part of the financial statements,
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LOQUS HOLDINGS P.L.C.
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - Group
as at 30 June 2011

2011 2010
Motes EUR EUR
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Issued capital 17.1 T.430,457 7,430,457
Share premium 172 B47.101 847,101
Capital redemption reserve 17.3 121,554 121,554
Accumulated losses (5,705.571) (4,275,307
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 2,693,541 4,123,805
MNon-controlling interest 21,028 (37,222)
Total equity 2,714,569 4,066,583
Mon-current liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 18 556,274 104,547
Trade and other payvables 20 300,000 -
856,274 104,547
Current liabilities
Interest bearing loans-and borrowings 18 1.053.710 1,574,429
Trade and other payables 20 4,057,990 2.927.245
5,111.700 4,501,674
Total liabilities 5.967,974 4606221
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8.682,543 8,672,804

The accounting policies and explonaiory notes on pages 24 fo 36 form an (megral pari of the financial
St e ey, i

The financial statements on pages 14 to 36 have been authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19
September 2012 and were signed on its behalf by

]

f , .'
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ANTHONY DEMAJO INECH CONTI

Audit Sorimittee Chairman
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LOQUS HOLDINGS P.L.C.
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - Group
for the vear ended 30 June 2011

2011 2010
Notes EUR ELR
Operating activities
[LosskProfit before tax (1,396.510) 30,665
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment - (7,098}
Drepreciation and amortisation 10, 11 B38.647 28,646
Provision for impairment of receivables 16 301,257 o
Write-off of receivables 7 15,128 -
Interest expense 205,531 166,736
Interest income (1,170} 14,736}
Provision for exchange differences (23.729) 33,562
Provision for obsolete inventory 15 3157 TO8E
Working capital adjustments:
[Increase)/Decrease in inventories (2.547) 488
Increase in trade and other receivables (534,222) (456,229
Increase in trade and other payvables 046,579 3BT.044
362,215 987,072
Interest paid (158,796) (166,736)
Interest received 1,170 4736
Income tax paid 8 80y (236)
Income tax refunded 7,199 8,036
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 211,708 833,472
Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 17,340 7008
Payment to acquire property, plant and equipment m {63.083) {40.530)
Payments to acquire intangible assets 11 {239.540) [301,296)
Payment for business combination 14 {102,000) -
Met cash flows used in investing activitics (387,283) {334.728)

Financing activities
Repayment of interest-bearing horrowings {326,554) (131,2890%
Repavment of amounts due to related parties - {244,008}

Net cash flows used in financing activities (326,584) (393 388)
Met movement in cash and cash equivalents {502,159) 103,356
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of vear 222,155 118,799
Cash and cash equivalents at end of vear 21 {280.004) 222,155

Fhe accouniing policies and explanatory notes on pages 24 1o 36 form an iriegral part of the financial statenments.
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LOQUS HOLDINGS P.L.C.
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - Company
for the year ended 30 June 2011

2011 2010
MNotes EUR EUR
Revenue - -
Personnel expenses ] (47.000) (47,862)
Professional and consultancy fees (3,958) (4.113)
Other administrative expenses 7 (22,651) {11.160)
Operating loss (73.609) (63,137
Finance income T0.774 69776
Finance cosls (70,337) (67.220)
Loss before tax (73,172) {60.581)
Income tax credit 8 - 17,272
Loss for the year (73,172) (43.309)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the vear,
net of tax (73,172) (43,309)
Laoss per share - hasic al (De2) (Ocl)

The gecounting poficies and explanatory notes on pages 24 to 36 form an iwtegral part of the financial

Slatemenis.




LOQUS HOLDINGS P.L.C.
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - Company

as at 30 June 2011
2011 2010
NMNotes EUR EUR
ASSETS
MNon-current assets
Investment in subsidiaries 12 9,655,336 0,655,336
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 10,887 10,225
[ncome tax recoverable - 7,199
Cash at bank and in hand 21 58,466 68314
69,353 83,738
TOTAL ASSETS 0,724,689 0,741,074
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Issued capital 17.1 T, 430,457 T A3 457
Share premium 17.2 847.101 847101
Accumulated losses (261,819) (188,647
5.015,739 &.088.911
MNon-current liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 18 475,970 -
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 991,594 Q8T0T77F
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 18 241,086 065,086
1,232,980 1.652.163
Total liabilities 1,708,950 1,652,163
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 9,724,689 9,741,074

The accownting policies and explanatory notes on pages 24 1o 56 form an integral part of the financial
slertemenis.

The financial statements on pages 4 to 36 have been authorised for fasue by the Board of Divectors on 19
September 2002 and were signed on ity behalf by

NNICI




LOQUS HOLDINGS P.L.C.
Annual Financial Statements for the yvear ended 30 June 2011

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY - Company
for the vear ended 30 June 2011

Issued Share Accumulated
capital premiom losses Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2010
At 1 Jaly 2009 7430457 3372414 (2.670.651) 8,132,220
Lass for the year - - (43,308 {43,309
Other comprehensive incame - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - {43309} (43 30%)
Reduction of share premium (note 17.2) - {2.525.313) 2525313 -
At 30 June 2010 7,430,457 B47.101 (188.647)  B.O88.911
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2011
Arl July 2010 7,430,457 B47.101 (1886471 R.OBESII
Loss for the year - - (73.172) {73172
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Toetal comprehensive income = = (73.172) (73,172}
At 30 June 2011 T.A30,457 847.101 (261,819 8015739

The accounting policies and explanatory notes

of pages 24 1o 36 form an ftegral part of the finaweiol statements,




LOQUS HOLDINGS P.L.C.
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - Company
for the year ended 30 June 2011

MNotes

Operating activities
Loss before tax
Mon-cash adjustment to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Finance cost
Finance income
Working capital adjustments:
Increase in trade and other receivables
Inerease in trade and other pavables

Intergst received
Income tax refunded

Net cash flows generated from operating activities
Investing activities

New capital subscription in subsidiaries 2
MNet cash flows used in from investing activities

Finaneing activities

Repayment of amounts due 1o related parties

Net eash flows used in financing activities

Met movement in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2011 2010
EUR EUR
(73,172) (60,581
70,337 67,220
(70,774) (69.776)
{662) (549)
75,155 306,584
884 242,898
437 2,556
7,199 8,636
8,520 254,090
- (1)
- (1
(18,368) (244,098)
(1 8.36;} (244,008)
(9,848) 9.99]
68,314 58,323

' 68,314

58,466

The aecownting policies and explanatory notes on pages 24 to 56 forer an integral part of the financial stafements.

2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

2.2

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Loqus Holdings p.l.c (the “Company™} is a public liability company, incorporated in Malta on 23 October
2000. The consolidated financial statements of the Company Tor the vear ended 30 June 2011 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the "Group™) and the Group’s interest in an
associated company. The Group is primarily involved in the provision of fleet management, back-office
processing, consulting and LCT solutions.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated and separate financial statements (the “financial statements™) have been prepared on a
historical cost basis.

The financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act,
Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malia and in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

Going Concern

As at 30 June 2011, the Group was in breach of bank covenants and all amounts outstanding to the bank
were immediately due and payable. To date the bank has continued its support to the Group but has not
formally committed to extend.

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the Group
will continue in existence for the foreseeable future, The validity of this assumption is dependent on the
supporl given by the bank and the Group’s ability to improve its liquidity. The directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources lo improve its liquidity and o take the necessary
decisions to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, in particular, with the realisation

of the assets classified as held for sale.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

Buasis of consolidation from [ July 2009

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries
as at 30 June 201 [.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition. being the date on which the Group obtains
control. and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using consistent
accounting policies. All intra-group balances, income and expenses, unrealised gains and losses and
dividends resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a change ol control, is accounted lor as an equity transaction.

Losses are attributed to the non-controlling interest even il that results in a deficit balance.
I the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:
e Derecognises the assels (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
Derecognises the carrving amount of any non-controlling interest
Derecognises the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity
Recognises the fair value of the consideration received
Recognises the fair value of any investment retained
Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss
Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income to profit or loss.

[-2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

2.3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial period except as
follows:

The Company has adopted the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations as of [ July
2010

e Amendment to IFRS | Limited Exemption from Comparative IFRS 7 disclosures for First-time
Adoption (effective for amnual periods beginning o or after [ Judy 2010},

e [FRS 2 Amendments Group cash-setiled share-based payment transactions (effeciive for annnal
periods beginning on or after [ Janwary 2000).

o [AS 32 Amendment Classification of Rights Issue (gffective for financial vears beginning on or
after § February 2040,

*  Improvements to IFRSs 2010,

The amendments in the 2010 Improvements to IFRSs are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2010, except for the amendmenis to IFRS 1, IFRS 7, TAS 1. IAS 34 and IFRIC 13. which are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after [ January 2011.

The adoption of the above new and amended standards and 1FRIC interpretations did not have an impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group/Company.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards as adopted by the EU that are
not yet effective up to 30 June 2011

¢ [FRS 1 Amendments — Additional exemptions for First Time Adoplers {effective for amnal periods
beginning on o after 1 January 201 1)

e IFRS 7 Amendments — Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets
1AS 1 Amendments — Presentation of lems of Other Comprehensive Income (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012}

»  JAS [0 (Revised) — Employee Benefits (effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January

2003y

= IAS 24 Revisions — Related Party Disclosures (effective for annual periods beginning on or gfter
I davuar: 200 1)

s [FRIC 14 Amendments — Prepayment of a Minimum Funding Requirement (effective for annwal

periods beginning on or gfter | Sanuary 20011
e [FRIC 19— Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments {effeciive for anmeal periods
begimning on or after 1 Janwary 201 3)

The adoption of the above new and amended standards and TFRIC interpretations is not expected to have a
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the Group/Company.

Standards, interpretations and amendments issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) but not yet adopted by the European Union:

. IFES | Amendments — Government Loans

e IFR5 | Amendments — Severs Hyperinflation and Remaoval of Fixed Dates for First-Time Adopters
e [FRS 7 Amendments — Disclosures — OfTsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

. IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

. IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

. IFRS 11 — loint Arrangements

. IFRS 12 — Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities

e JFRS |3 — Fair Value Measurement

I-J
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

2.3

24

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES - continued

Standards, interpretations and amendments issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) but not yet adopted by the European Union: - continued

[AS 12 Amendments — Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlving Assets

e  [AS 27— Separate Financial Statements

# ]AS 28 - Investinents in Associates and Joint ¥entures

= [AS 32 Amendments — Ofsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
e [FRIC 20 - Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

. Improvements to IFRSs issued on May 2012

The adoption of the above new and amended standards and IFRIC interpretations is not expected to have a
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the Group/Company.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting polices set oul below have been applied consistently to all vears presented in these
financial statements and have been applied consistently by Group/Company.

Foreign currency translation

The separate and consolidated financial statements are presented in Euro, which is the Group/Company’s
functional and presentation currency, Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using the functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate ruling at the date of

the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date, whereas non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange raies as at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rales at the date when the fair value was determined. Gains and losses arising from such
foreign exchange translations are taken to the statement of comprehensive income.

Revenue recognition

In general, revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or reccivable and is
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group/Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before

revenue is recognised:
Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
net of returns and allowances. trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buver, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, and
there 1s no continuing management involvement with the goods.

Revernuwe from services rendeved
Reévenue from services rendered is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in proportion Lo

the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The stage of completion is assessed by
reference to the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date as a percentage to the
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estimated total costs. The excess of revenue measured at a percentage completion over the revenue
recognised in prior periods is the revenue for the period.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

frterest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets classified as
available-for-sale, interest income ! expense is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). Interest
income is included with finance income in the statement of comprehensive income.

Dividend incaome
Revenue is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established.

Taxes

Current fax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current vear and prior periods are measured ar the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carryving amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed al each reporting date and reduced o the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed al each
reporting date and are recognised Lo the extent that it has become probable that future laxable profit will

allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
vear when the assel is realised or the lability is settled. based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, il a legally enforceable right
exists to set of T current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred income laxes relate

to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

VAT

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax/value added tax except:

*  where the sales tax‘value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case the sales tax/value added tax is recognised as part of the

asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and
e receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax/value added tax included.

The net amount of sales tax/value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, il is recognised
as income over the vears necessary to match the grants on a systematic basis to the costs that are intended
Lo compensate.

Employee benefits

The Group/Company contributes towards the State pension defined contribution plan in accordance with
local legislation and to which it has no commitment bevond the payment of fixed contributions. Related
costs are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income during the year these are

incurrad,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when mcurred.

Non-corrent assefs held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured al the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current asseis and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the
assel or disposal group is available for immediate sale in ils present condition. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification.

Management monitors the operating resulls of its business units separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on operating profit or loss and is measured consistently with operating profit and loss in the consolidated
financial statements. Corporale expenses are allocated based on the segmental revenues. However, the
Group assets and liabilities are managed on a Group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as beld for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.

Properiy, plant and equipment
ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses ifany.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. When parts of an
item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items

{major components} of property, plant and equipment,

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
fcalculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of comprehensive income in the yvear the asset is derecognised.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow 1o the
Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the useful life of each part of an item of property,
plantand equipment. A depreciation charge equivalent to a half year’s depreciation is charged for the vear
in which the asset is first brought into use and a hall year’s depreciation is charged during the vear in
which the asset is disposed of or scrapped,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Property, plant and equipment - continued

The estimated lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows;

. System infrastructure 5- 15 years

. Heavy plant and machinery 10 vears

. Furniture, fitlings and equipment 4 - 10 vears

. Motor vehicles 5 vears

. Factory improvements over the remaining period of the lease

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

Leased assets

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets, or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Group as a lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership
of the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property
or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned
between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability, Finance charges are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income. Leased assets are depreciated over the useful life of the assel. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Group/Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term,

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

Crroup as a lessor

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset
are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same bases as

HCOMmeE.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, development expenditure are carried out at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accomulated impairment losses,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Intangible assets - continued

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at each
financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of future consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in the accounting estimates. The amortisation expense
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the
expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset. The amortisation period for the

intangibles category is as follows:

5 years

. Capitalised development costs
4 vears

. Acquired computer software

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific assel to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income when incurred.

Goodwill

The definition of an intangible asset requires an intangible asset to be identifiable to distinguish it from
goodwill. Goodwill recognised in a business combination is an asset representing the future economic
benefits arising from other assets acquired in a business combination that are not individually identified
and separately recognised. The future economic benefits may result from synergy between the
identifiable assets acquired or from assets that, individually, do not qualify for recognition in the financial

statements.

Goodwill is measured-at cost less accumulated impairment losses. In respect of associates, the carryving
amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment.

Research and developmeni
Research costs, undertaken with the prospect ol eaining new scientific or technical knowledge and
understanding, are expensed as incurred.

Development expenditure on an individual project is recognised as an intangible asset when the Company
can demaonstrate;

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset;

how the asset will generate future economic benefits;

the availability of resources to complete the asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

[ Development cost Acquired computer software
Liseful Hives Finite Finite
Amortisation method osed Amortised on a straight Amortized on a siraizht
ling method lne. method
Intemally generated or acguimed Internally generated Acquired

L4
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on
the first-in-first-out principle. and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing
them to their existing location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Impairment of assets
Financial assets

The Group/Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event”) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the receivables
or a group of receivables is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments. the probability that they will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation and
when observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows. such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults,

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group/Company first assesses individually whether
objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group/Company determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of

impairment.

[f there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
{excluding future expected credit losses that have not vet been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income.

I, in a subsequent vear, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account, If a future write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Non-financial assets

The Group/Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired, If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is requived, the
Group/Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs 1o sell and its wvalue in use and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrving amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount. the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These caleulations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for property previously
revalued where the revaluation was taken to equity. In this case the impairment is also recognised in equity
up to the amount of any previous revaluation,

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made al each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such indication exists, the Group/Company estimates the assel’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amount, nor exceed the carrving amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation. had no
impairment loss been recognised for the assel in prior periods. Such reversal is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is

treated as a revaluation increase.

The following criteria are also applied in assessing impairment of specific assets:

Groodwif!

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as al year end and when circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable
amount of each cash-generating unit {or group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than ils carrying amount an impairment
less is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired.

Investment in associate

The Group’s investment in its associate is accounted for using the equily method of accounting, An
associate is an entily in which the Group has significant influence.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the staterment of financial position at
cost plus post acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate. Goodwill relating to
the associate is included in the carrving amount of the investment and is not amortised nor separately
tested for impairment. The statement of comprehensive income reflects the share of the results of
operations of the associate, When there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

The share of profit of associates is shown on the face of the statement of comprehensive income. This is
the profit attributable o equity holders of the associate and therefore is profit after tax and non-controlling

interests in the subsidiaries o the associates.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting vear as the parent company.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investmeni in its associates. The Group determines at each
reporting date whether there is any objeciive evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. 1T
this is the case the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverahle
amount of the associate and its carrving value and recognises the amount in the statement of

comprehensive income.

L
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Investment in subsidiaries

The investment in subsidiary companies, which are unlisted, are stated at cost. Provision is made, where
in the opinion of the directors, there is a permanent diminution in value. Income from the investment is
recognised only 1o the extent of the distributions received by the Company.

Trade and other receivables

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible
amounts. An estimate for doubtful debis is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable,
Bad debts are written off as incurred. Receivables from related party are recognised and carried at cost,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at banks in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and in hand.

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand depesits and short-term, highly liquid
investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to ihsignificant risk of changes in

value,

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above, net of any outstanding bank overdrafis,

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for amounts payable are carried al cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in
the future for goods and services received. whether or not billed to the Group/Company. Payables to

related parties are carried at cost.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less direct
attributable transaction costs,

Adfter initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Frinancial assets

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a parl of a lnancial asset or part of a group of similar {inancial
assets) is derecognised where:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group/Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full withoul material delay to a third party under a “pass-

through’ arrangement; and

e gither {a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control

ol the asset,

3
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

When the Group/Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Group’s/Company’s continuing involvement in the asset,

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is either discharged or cancelled
or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of

comprehensive income.
Unrealised profits

Part 11 of the Third Schedule to the Companies Act, Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malta, requires that only
profits/losses realised at the reporting date may be included in refained earnings available for distribution,
Any unrealised profits/losses at this date, taken to the statement of comprehensive income, are transferred

to a non-distributable reserve.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year atiributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the

vear.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit atiributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into

ordinary shares,
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect reported income, expenses, assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities. Use of available information and application of judgement are inherent in the formation af
estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from such estimates and the differences may be material
to the financial statements. These estimates are reviewed on a regular basis and if a change is needed, it is
accounted in the year the changes become known. The most significant judgements and estimates are as

follows:

Impairment of non-financial assets

For the vear ended 30 June 201 1. the Group’s impairment for goodwill is based on the fair value less cost
to sell. This has been derived by reference to the recoverable amount considered during negotiation of the
disposal of the assets held for sale.

For previous year, the Group’s impairment for goodwill was based on value in use calculations that use a
discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next three years as
approved by management. Cash flow projections beyond this period were extrapolated for the next eight
years using a steady growth rate. after which the terminal value was calculated. These budgets do not
include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments tha
will enhance the asset base of the Group. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the growth rate used
as well as the expected future net cash-inflows and discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model.
The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount, including a sensitivity analysis, are further
explained innote 11.1.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS - continued

Going concern

Management has made an assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going concern and is
satisfied that the company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Note 2.1 to
the financial statements details the going concern assessment,

Fleet management operations

Close o the yvear end, the Board of Directors decided to actively pursue the sale of its existing fleet
management operation, including sofiware and existing business relationships, 1o an established
international strategic partner, who may be better placed to exploit the full potential of the said assets on
the international market.

The Board considered that the fleet management operations met the criteria to be classified as held for sale
at that date for the following reasons:
e  The fleet management operations are available for immediate sale and can be seld to a patential
buyer in its current condition
e The Board had a plan to sell the fleet management operations and had entered into preliminary
negoliations with a potential buyer. Should negotiations with the party not lead to a sale. a
number of other potential buyers have been identified
e  The Board cannot determine the date when negotiations are expected to be finalised however. it
is taking the necessary action to resolve favourably the delaying factors.

For more details on the fleet management operations refer to note 4.
Development cosis

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy in note 2.4, Initial
capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgement that technological and economical feasibility
is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a defined milestone according to an
established project management model. [n determining the amounts to be capitalised management makes
assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the project. discount rates to be applied and
the expected vear of benefits. At 30 June 2011, the carrving amount of capitalised development costs was
EURT,053,949 (2010: EUR1.554,454) out of which EUR729.027 has been classified as held for sale.

In the opinion of the management, except for the above. the accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgements made in the course of preparing these financial statements are not difficuli, subjective or
complex to a degree which would warrant their description as critical in terms of the requirements of LAS
| (revised) ‘Presentation of financial statements’.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the group is organised into business units based on their products and services
as follows:

#  TFleet management - Vehicle and Marine Tracking Systems and On the Move Logistics Solutions
including tailor-made solutions as well as off-the-shelf packages.

¢  Back-office processing - variety of high level. off site services to support entities,

e Projects - assist clients in selecting appropriate 1CT solutions and in implementing them.

e Consulting services - work with governments and entities, assisting them to plan and manage
institutional reform.

%)
Ln
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on operating profit or loss and is measured consistenily with operating profit and loss in the consolidated
financial statements. Corporale expenses are allocated based on the segmental revenues. However, the
Group assets and Habilities are managed on a Group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

Group
2011 Fleet  Bachk-office Consulting
management processing Projects services Consolidated
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
Revenue 2,192,601 1.426.741 314,840 172264 4.106,455
Oither income 171666 - - - 171,666
Purchases and other
directly attributable costs. {846,218} {161.704) {216.968) {21.415) [1.246.303)
Personnel expenses {933.861) {T78.385) {354,393} (194,318) (2,263,157
Other expenses {380.963) (378.037) [B3.424) (79743} (1,122,167)
Oiperating profit{loss)
before depreciation
and amortisation 1,275 108,615 [3440.136) {123,212 {353.508)
Depreciation and
Amortisation (738781 (BR.O5T) [5.800) {4,105 (B38.647)
Finance income 625 406 an 49 1170
Finance cost (109,741 (T4} (15.738) {8.622) [205,531)
{Loss)/Profit before tax (846,672) (51.346) (362,604) (135,894) (1.396,516)
2010 Fleet  Back-office Consulling
management processing Projects services Consolidated
EUR ELR EUR EUR EUR
Revenue 1.530,728 1,308,625 396,254 210,881 4 446,488
Oher incoeme 95,0590 21,234 22.057 3422 142,412
Purchases and direcily
atiributahle cost (391,334 (115987} (G331, 069 (13,484} P LIS2074)
Personnel expenses [638,236) (G32.000) [237.5206) (170,660} (1,718.512)
Other cxpenses {231,871 [ 198.2206) (2015000 [53.306) {66,903 )
Operating profit{loss)
hefore depreciation
and amortlisation 344,186 163556 338.716 125,147) 1021311
Depreciation and
amortisalion [T 14,490 {77.916) (31275 (4,961 [B28.646)
Finance income | 630 1.394 1487 225 4,736
Finance cost [ST,400% (49071 (52357 (7008 (166,736}
{Loss)Profit before tax (426074 237963 256,367 [37.791) 0665

There is no inler-segment revenue and all revenue was generated from external customers,
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Revenue by geographical markeis Local Europe N Africa Total

EUR EUR EUR EUR
2011 2,559,048 1,501,082 46,325 4,106,455
2010 3,357.646 994798 94,044 4,446,488

FLEET MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS

Part of the Group’s assets, relating to fleel management are being classified as assets held for sale. The
rationale behind this classification is to maximise the realisation of the assets.

Close to wvear end, the Board of Directors decided to actively pursue the sale of its existing fleet
management operations, iocluding software and existing business relationships, to an established
international strategic partner. who may be better placed to exploit the full potential of the said assets on
the international market,

The major classes of assets being classified as held for sale as at 30 June 2011 are as follows:

2011 2010

EUR EUR
Goodwill (note 11) 4,511,547 -
Intangible assets {note 11) 836,141 -
Tangible assets (note 10 111.451 -
Inventories (note 135) 200,000 -

5,059,139 -

Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets ceased on 30 June 2011,

Since the Group assels and liahilities are managed on a Group basis and are not allocated to operating
segments, il was not practicable o disclose the net cash flows incurred by the fleel management

operations.

OTHER INCOME

Other income includes government granis amounting o EUR 166,302 (2010: EURT70,260). These are
receivable for research being carried out by Loqus Solutions Limited under the ERDF Scheme.
bManagement is confident that all conditions will be fulfilled by the time the request for pavment is
processed.
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6.

PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Personnel expenses incurred by the Group/Company during the vear are analysed as follows:

Directors’ emolwments
Wages and salaries
Social security defined contribulion costs

Capitalised fabour costs

Total personnel expenses

Group
2011 2010
EUR EUR
606,004 63,002
2,270,010 1,848.679
112,363 102,047
2,448,373 2013728
{185,216) (295.216)
2,263,157 1,718,512

Company
2011 20140
EUR EUR
42,000 42,002
5,000 5,860
47,000 47,862
47,000 47.862

Social security defined contribution costs relating to Directors amount to EUR 1,714 (2010: EUR1,696).

The average number of persons employed by the Group/Company during the years ended 30 June 2011

and 2010, was as follows:

Operating
Administration

OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Auditor’s remuneration

- current year

- over provision in prior period

Water and electricity

Printing expenses

Insurances

Listing and registration fees

Bank charges

Receivables written ofT

Mowvement in provision for impairment
of receivables (note 16)

Movement in unrealised foreign exchange

Rent

Telecommunications

Fuel and 04l

Other expenses

714,487

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 20100
No. Mo, No. MNo.
68 57 - -
22 23 - :
a0 80 - -
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 20100
EUR EUR EUR EUR
53,183 37.731 3,126 2,950
- - - {9.981)
44,029 22,313 - -
5,973 7.634 5973 7.634
31173 30,465 - -
11,460 [ 0649 11,460 8.731
9.509 2,529 18 -
25,128 - - -
301,257 6 - -
24.442) 27215 - -
54,378 57682 - -
67,059 62,393 - -
30,598 21,113 - -
105,182 100,01 5 2,074 1.826
379,945 22,651 11.160




LOQUS HOLDINGS P.L.C.
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued

T. OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES - continued

Group

Professional and Consultancy fees included remuneration payable to the company’s auditor for tax
compliance services of EUR2.163 (2010; EUR2,5107.

Company

Professional and Consultancy fees included remuneration payable to the company’s auditor for tax
compliance services of EUR413 (2010: EUR431).

8. INCOME TAX

The taxation charge/{credit) for the vear is comprised of the following;

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Current lax charge
- current year 80 236 - -
- over provision in prior period - (17,272} - (17.272)
30 (17,036} - (17,272)

The taxation on profit{loss) before tax differs from the theoretical taxation expense that could apply on the
Company’s profit on ordinary activities before taxation using the applicable laxation in Malta of 35% as

follows:
Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

EUR EUR EUR EUR
(Loss)/Profit before tax (1.396.516) 30,663 {73,172) (60,581}
Theoretical taxation expense/{(credit) at domestic

income tax rate 33% (488,781) 10.733 (25,010) (21.203)

Ta effect of:
- Income not subject to tax (58.276) - - -
- Non-deductible expenses 167,121 70,022 25,763 22,098
- Deferred tax not recognised 440,016 (80,319} (153} (893
- Ower provision in prior periods - (17272 - (17.272
Tax charge/{credit) s i(17,038) - (17,272)

ld
Ra)
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& (LOSSYEARNINGS PER SHARE

9.1 Basic (loss)earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)earnings per share is based on the consolidated (loss)‘profit for the year
attributable to the ordinary equity holders and the Company’'s profit/(loss} divided by the average number
of equity shares outstanding during the vear,

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
EUR EUR EUR EUR
{ Loss)profit attributable to the ordinary
equity holders/Company’s (loss)earnings (1,367,790} [(6, 148 (73.,172) (43,309
Average number of equity shares outstanding
during the vear 31,899,000  31,899.000 31,899,000 31.895.000
Basic (loss)/carnings per share attributable
to the ordinary equity holders/Company’s
basic (loss)yearnings per share (4e3) Oc3 (0e2) {Ocl)

9.2  Diluted earnings per share

As at the reporting date there are no instruments that could potential dilute ordinary shares.

40



LOQUS HOLDINGS P.L.C.

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued

1.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

AL Jaly 2009
Additions
Disposals

At 30 June 20010
Additions
Acquisitions
Disposals

Fleet management aperations

At 30 June 2011

Depreciation and impairment

A1 July 2009
Depreciation charge
Release on disposal

AL 30 June 2010
Depreciation charge
Release on disposal

Fleet management operations

At 30 June 2011

MNet Book Value
At 30 June 2011

At 3 June 2010

At 30 June 2009

Equipment

Swystem furniture & Motor Factory
Infrastructure fittings Vehicles Improvements Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
5,375.239 1.E17.003 86,739 331.662 T.ol0.643
- 40,107 423 - 40,330
(3,375,239} - {30,282) - [5.405.521)
- 1837110 56,880 331.662 2,245,652
- 478706 14.427 TEO 63,083
- 23,603 - - 23603
- [31.255) - - (31.255)
- {234.305}) - - (234,305
- 1,663,029 71,307 332,442 2,060,778
5,375.239 1.479.343 42,309 212,524 TA08A415
= 7651 11,333 21,249 130,273
(3375239} = (30,282} - {5405521)
- 1.577.034 23,360 233,773 1,834.167
- 97,769 12,819 21.288 131,876
- (13,915 - - (13,91
- (122.854) = = {122.854)
- 1538030 36,179 255,061 1,829,270
- 124,999 35128 77381 237,508
- 280076 33520 97889 411483
- 337,660 44.430 I1% 138 SOL.228

During the year under review, the company classilied assets relating 1o the fleel management assels as held

for sale.

The earrving value of assets held under finance lease at 30 June

EURLATI).

2011 stood at EURIOZZT (2010

As at 30 June 2011, assets amounting to EURETS 042 (20110 EURS65,533) were fully depreciated.
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11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Software Acquired
Goodwill Development Software Total
ELR EUR EUR EUR

Cost
At 1 July 2009 3,701,288 3,954,605 427783 10L0R3.Ti6
Addditions - 295,206 RIS 301,296
At 30 June 2010 5,701,288 4.249 961 433783 10,385,032
Additions - 230,288 9252 239,540
Acquisition 270,929 - 103,468 376,397
Fleet management operalions (5.972.217y  (3.474.387) (171.725) (9618329
AL June 2011 - 1005862 376,778 1.382.640
Amortisation and Impairment
Al July 2009 1447934 2.021.949 404,518 387440
Amortisation charge - T3.558 12,079 O85.637
Impairment charge 12,736 - 12,736
At 30 June 2010 1. 460,670 2695 507 416,597 4.372.774
Amortisation charge - GB3.582 21189 T0E.TT
Fleet management operalions (1 4aa70y  (2.745.360) (6doll) (4.270,641)
At 30 June 2011 - 635,729 373,175 1,008,904
Met Book Value
At 30 June 2011 - 30,133 3.603 373,736
At 30 June 2000 4,240,618 1,554 454 17,186 5,812,258
At 30 June 2009 4,253,354 1,932,716 23.265 6,209,135

Intangible assets are made up of goodwill, sofiware development and acquired software, Software
development includes capitalised labour cost incwrred in the enhancement and development of software,

As at vear end, EUR 175,020 (2010: EUR175,857), relating to the development of one of the subsidiary’s
software products, was not in the condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management.

During the vear under review, the company transferred software development assets and goodwill relating
to the fleel management assets to assets held for sale,

As at 30 June, assets amounting to EURS02.831 (2010: EUR364,608) were fully amortised.
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11.

11.1

1.2

12.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS — continued
Transfer of goodwill and software development as held for sale — current period

During the financial vear ended 30 June 2011, the Group took a decision to actively pursue the sale of its
existing fleet management operation, including software and existing business relationships, to an
established international strategic partner, who may be better placed to exploit the full potential of the said
assets on the international market.

The Directors have assessed the value of the assets and goodwill in accordance with the concept of fair
value on the basis of what a prudent purchaser would be prepared to pay and believe that the value of the
assets can be secured in an eventual transaction. In this respect, the fair value less cost to sell of the assets
held for sale is higher than the carrying amount.

Impairment test for the cash-generating units containing goodwill - prior period

Since management only monitors reverue and directly attributable costs of its business units separately
and the decision making process was managed on a group basis, the Group was considered to be a single

cash penerating unit.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit was determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by senior management covering a three year
period. The cash flows bevond the budget period were extrapolated using a 6% (2009: 6%) growth rate for

vears four to eleven and 3% (2009: 3%4) thereafter into perpetuity.

The key assumptions used in the wvalue in use caleulation were most sensitive to the following

AssSUWMpLions:

e Revenue growth rate (13% average) during the budgeted period;
s Growth rates (6% and 3%} bevond the budget period; and

. Pre-tax discount rate {15.8%).

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
Capital Shareholders®
subscribed contribution Total
EUR EUR ELR
At 30 June 2009 2429387 7.232.8065 9,662,252
New capital subscription 1 - I
Decrease in amounts receivable - (5,917 {6.917)
At 30 June 2000 2,429 388 7225948 9.655,336
Al 30 June 2011 2,429 388 TX25.948 9,655,336

e
)
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1Z.  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Ownership Interest

2011 2010
Significant Subsidiaries Registered office Yo %o Mature of Business
Legus Services Limated F26. Mosta Technopark %9 9459 Fleat management
[note iii) Mosta, MST 3000, Malta in hMalta and back-
affice processing
Logus Solutions Limited F26, Mosta Technopark %4.04 94,04 Software selutions
(node i} Mosta, MST 3000, halia
Logus Consulting 26, Mosta Technopark 750 750 Consulting
Lanuited Mosta, MST 3000, Malta services
Logus UK Lid. {note 1) Trectops Cedar (EEY) 106k Fleet Management in
Drive, Snitterfield the UK
Stratford Upon Avon
CV37T0OLL UK
Datatrak [T Services F26, Masta Techropark 50.2 50.2 Sofiware
Limited {note i) Mlosta, MST 3000, Malta development and
related services
Logus ftalia S.r.1. Via Paolo di Done, 73 104 350 Fleet management
[note iii) 00142, Roma, lealia in [taly
Premiere Post Limited F26. Mosta Technopark 959 9u.a Postal Service
{note iii) Mosta, MST 3000, Malta

iil.

Loqus UK Ltd is a limited company registered on 2 July 2009 in the UK with an authorised share
capital of 1,000 shares of GBP | each and an issued share capital of | share, fully paid up.

Datatrak [T Services Limited has been dormant since 1 January 2008 and did not carry out any
trading activity during the current year.

The Company indirectly controls Logus Italia S.rl. {formerly Datatrak Italia S.r.1) through Logus
Solutions Limited. In the vear under review the group gained full control of this subsidiary. On 31
August 2010, the Group acquired an additional 43% interest in the voting shares of Loqus Italia
Sl increasing its ownership interest to 100%. A cash consideration of EUR2 14,000 was paid to
the non-contrelling interest, however as part of the {ransaction the minority interest shareholder
agreed to waive an amount equal 1o EUR258,582 pavable to it by Logus Italia S.rl. The carrving
value of additional interest acquired was a negative EUR107.056. The difference of EURGZ 474
between the consideration and the carrying value of the interest acquired has been recognised in
relained earnings within equity,

Furthermore, the Company indirectly controls Premiere Post Limited through Logus Services
Limited.

Datatrak IT Algerie Sarl is in the process of liquidation and the investment was fully provided for
in previous periods. Such subsidiary was nol consolidated due to the fact that amounts are
immaterial for the Group and no transactions were entered into during the vear under review:,
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13.  INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE
Group
The Group’s investment in associate is analyvsed as follows:
2011 2010
EUR EUR
favestment it associared compan:
AL 30 June - -
The investment in the associated company is held through Logus Solutions Limited.
Ownership interest
2011 2010
Significant subsidiary Registered office ) | %o MNature of business
Dratatrak Migeria Limited | Nigeria k1T an Data network
provider
The issued share capital of Datatrak Nigeria Limited is 85,000,000 shares of 1 Nigerian Naira each, fully
paid up. All ordinary shares in the associate carry equal voting rights.
The Group has limited the recognition of losses of the associated company up to the extent of the value of
the Group's interest in the enterprise. The Group does not have any exposure beyond its equity interest
therein.
14. DEFERRED TAX

Group

As ol 30 June 2011, the Group had deferred tax assels amounting to EURS 019917 (2010:
EUR4,342.300}. These deferred tax assets have not been recognised in these financial statements and will
be recognised when utilised against fulure taxable profis.

These deferred tax assets are in respect of the tax effect of tax losses, capilal allowances, investment tax
credits and other temporary differences. These deductible temporary differences do not expire under

current lax legislation.

Deferred tax assets relaling to investment tax credits amount to EUR1.914.571 (2010 EUR1.676.970).

Company

As of 30 June 2011, the Company had a deferred tax asset of EUR4S,166 (2010: EUR47 833). These
deferred tax assets have not been recognised in these financial statements and will be recognised when
utilised against future taxable profits.

This deferred tax assel is in respect of the tax effect of tax losses and does nol expire under current fax
legislation,
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15.  INVENTORIES

2011
EUR

Raw materials and consumables 9,776

Group

2010
EUR

10,484

Company
2011 2010
EUR EUR

Raw materials and consumables of the Group are stated net of a provision for slow moving inventories

amounting to EUR 11,003 (2010: EURT,746).

Part of the Group's inventories, amounting to EUR200.000 (2010 nil), relating to fleet management, have

been classified as assets held for sale, as disclosed in Note 4.

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2011
EUR
Trade receivables (note 1) 1,869,598
Other receivables (note i} 64,516
Amounts owed by related parties {note ii) 161,957
Prepayments and accrued income 230,533

2,326,904

Group Company

2010 2011 2000

EUR EUR EUR

1,752,238 - =

92,157 6,209 0,909

75,899 1,794 1,632

191,033 2,184 1,684
2,111,327 10,887

10,225

i Trade receivables and other receivables are stated net of impairment allowance. changes in which

are presented below:

Individually impaired

AL 30 Jupe 2010
Movement for the vear
Utilised

At 30 June 2011

AL 30 June 2009
Movement for the vear
Litilised

At 30 June 20110

Trade Otiher
receivables receivables Total
EUR EUR EUR
116.261 72,439 188,700
319.698 5,800 325,507

(24,25(0) - (24,250

411,709 78,248 489,957
116,255 72.439 188,694
i) - a

| 16,261 T2.430

188,700
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16.

17.

17.1

17.2

17.3

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - continued

As at 30 June 2011, the ageing analysis of trade receivables was as follows:

Weither past Past due but not impaired
duz nor
Total impaired <3 days 30-60 days ol days
ELUR ELUR ELIR ELR ELIR
30 June 2011 1,869,598 1,338,108 146,013 101,700k 283,777
30 June 20100 1,752,238 968,259 131,362 76,5301 576,116

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on a 30 day term.

i, Amounts due by related parties are interest free and repayable on demand. Amount due firom
associate of EUUR227 728 (2010: EUR227,728) has been fully impaired.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Issued capital

2011 2010
EUR EUR
Authorised
50,000,000 ordinary shares of EUR0.232937 each 11,646,850 11,646,850
[ssued and Fully paid
31,899.000 ordinary shares of ELIRO.232937 each,
fully paid up 7,430,457 T.430,457

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.

Share premium

2011 2010

EUR ELR
[ July 847,101 3372414
Write-off of share premium {note i) - {2,525,313)
At 30 June B47,101 847,101

i At an Annual General Meeting held on 7 August 2008, the Company resolved lo reduce the
share premium by EURZ2,323.313 to offset losses.

Capital redemption reserve

In terms of Section 115 (1} of the Companies Act, Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malita there is a capital
maintenance requirement upon redemption of preference shares, Where preference shares are redeemed
otherwise than out of proceeds of a fresh issue, an amount equivalent to the nominal amount of the
preference shares being redeemed is to be transferred from distributable profits to a capital redemption
reserve,

This reserve is non distributable by way of dividends. It may be applied by the Company in paying up
unissued shares of the Company as fully paid bonus shares 1o the shareholders of the Company,
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18. INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Bank borrowings comprise bank loans analysed as follows:

Group

2001 2010
EUR EUR
Nowm-current {iabilities
- Other borrowings (note ii) 74,062 104,547
- Obligation under finance lease (note iii) 6,242 -
- Amounts owed to related parties {note iv) 475,970 -
556,274 104,547
Current fiahiflities
- Bank loans (note i) 422,940 779.672
- Bank overdrafis (note 21) 355,484 07,896
- Other borrowings (note ii) 31,200 31,200
- Obligation under finance lease (note iii) 3.000 575
- Amounts owed to related parties (note iv) 241,086 665,080
1,053,710 1,574,429
1.609.984 1,678,976
Company
2011 2010
EUR EUR
Nan-current liabilities
- Amounts owed to related parties (note iv) 475,970 -
Current liabifitics
- Amounts owed to related parties {note iv) 241,086 565086
717,056 063 086
i.  The Group has a lotal banking facility of EURL.[27,723 which includes guarantee facilities of

EURA00.000. Bank loans and overdraft bear interest ranging from 4.23% to 7% p.a. and are payable
by 2013-2014. The banking facilities are secured by general hypothec over the assets of subsidiaries,
guarantees provided by Group companies. pledging of cash balances and by general hypothec over
the assets, pledging of insurance policies and guarantees of the major shareholder.

ii.  Other borrowings, which bear interest ranging from 0.75% to 2% p.a., are payable by 2015 and are
secured by general hypothec over assets of a subsidiary and pledge of insurance policy.

iii. Obligations under finance lease, which bear interest at 8% p.a., are pavable by 2014,
iv. Amounts payables to related parties are unsecured and bear interest at 8%,

As at 30 June 2011 and 2010, the Group was in breach of bank covenants and all amounts due to the bank
were immediately due and pavable. Although the bank did not explicitly confirm its support to the Group,
the bank did not call in the amounts due by the Group.
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18. INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS - continued

The table below shows the bank loans and other borrowings according to when they are expected to be
repaid based on their contractual maturity. For the Group’s exposure to liquidity, interest rates and foreign
currency risks, see note 25,

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Between | and 2 years 34,076 31,200 - -
Between 2 and 5 vears 522,198 73347 241,086 -
556,274 104,547 241,086 -

19. ACQUISITIONS

On 23 December 2010, the Group acquired a business relating to fleet management. The fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired business as at the date of acquisition were;

Group
2011 20100
EUR EUR
Goodwill 270,929 -
Intangible assets 105,468 -
Tangible assets 23,603 -
Inventories 200,000 -
600,000 -

Out of the total purchase consideration of EURG00.000, EUR 102,000 had been paid by 30 June 2011.
EUR198.000 is pavable within one wyear whilst the remaining EUR300,000 shall be paid by December

2012,

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Non-current Group Company
2011 2000 2011 2000
FUR EUR EUR EUR
Other pavables 300,000 - - -
Current Group Company
2011 2000 2011 2010
EUR ELUR EUR EUR
Trade pavables (note i) 1.991.820 [,348.544 103.468 105,544
Trade payables to related parties (note ii) 112.774 262,254 - -
Other payables 412,000 - - -
Amounts payable to subsidiaries {note ii} - - 881,186 &78.393
(Crther taxes and social security
contributions 1,189,690 842,703 - -
Accruals and deferred income 351,706 273,744 T.240 4,940

4,057,990 2927345 091,894 O87.077
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - continued

i.  Amounts due to trade pavables are unsecured, interest free and are generally on 30-9{ days term.

i..  Trade payables to related parties are unsecured and bear no interest,

21.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and balances with banks. Cash and cash equivalents
included in the statement of cash Aows reconcile to the amounts in the statement of financial position as

follows:
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Bank balances {note i} 75.480 3200051 58,4606 68,314
Bank overdraft (note 18) (355,484) (97.896) - -
Cash and cash equivalents (250,004} 222155 58,4606 68314

i.  Bank balances are pledged as detailed in note 18.

22, COMMITMENTS
22.1  Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee

The Group leases factory facilities under cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease apreements
run for an initial term of 16 vears which initiated on 28 May 1998,

During the year ended 30 June 2011, operating leases amounted to EURS4.378 were recognised as an
expense in the statement of comprehensive income (2010: EURS7,682),

22.2  Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor

A subsidiary company leases equipment to customers under operating leases equipment amounting tw
EURI34,822 (2010: EUR153,298). Accumulated depreciation on these assels al vear end amounted to
EURGEA01 (2010: EURSS,504).

During the vear ended 30 June 2011. EUR197.594 was recognised as rental income in the statement of
comprehensive income (2000 EUR217,537) and EUR28.512 charged to the statement of comprehensive
income in respect of depreciation relating to equipment under operating leases to customers (2010:

EUR30.6007).

The future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable leases are as follows;

2011 2010

EUR EUR

Within one year 226,896 261.55]
After one vear but not more than five vears 136,488 344,304
363384 605,855

_n
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

22. COMMITMENTS - continued

22.3  Finance lease commitments - Group as lessee

The subsidiary has a finance lease for a motor vehicle and computer tablets. Obligations arising from the
finance lease are disclosed in note 18.

22.4 Guaraniees

The Company

The Company is a guarantor for EUR1,694.518 (2010 EUR 1,694,518} and has cash balances pledged in
respect to banking facilities provided to two group companies as detailed in note 18.

23.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Group

The related parties of the company with which the company had balances outstanding or transactions were
as follows:

GO ple (shareholder of the company}

JFC Trading Limited {other related party)

GDL Trading Limited {other related party)

E-tail Limited {other related party)

Transactions with velated parties

During the year. the Group entered into various transactions with related parties, as follows:

2011 2000
EUR EUR
Revenue
Sales 14,871 -
Expenses
Telecommunication Expenses 31,193 41,631
Professional Fees 51,216 33315
Other Administrative Expenses - 1.069
Finance Expenses 18,368 19 840
Other Expenses 8.393 -

Balances with related parvties
Balances with related parties are disclosed in notes 16, 18 and 20.
Key management pevsonnel

The Board of Directors are considered to be key management personnel, Toial Directors’ emoluments is
included in note & - Personnel Expenses, Wages and salaries also include an amount of EUR338,994

(2010: EUR61,804) paid as salaries to Executive Director,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

23.  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES - continued
Company
Transactions with related pariies

During the year, the Company entered into various transactions with related parties, as follows:

2011 2010
EUR EUR
Revenue Related Party
Finance Expenses GO ple 18,368 19,840

Balances with related parties
Balances with related parties are disclosed in notes 16, 18 and 20.
Key management personnel

Total directors” emoluments are included in note 6 — Personnel Expenses.

24. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On | February 2012 an agreement to dispose the Racelink service, which was acquired as part of the
acquisition of Alemea, was reached with Canossa Events S.r.l.

25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

® Credit risk
& Liguidity risk
. Market risk

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of
capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial starements.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework,

The Group’s risk management policies are established 1o identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group.
tor set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly 1o reflect changes in markel conditions and the Group's
activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures. aims to develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and

ohligations,

Lh
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25,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued

The Group Audit Committee oversees how the management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk
management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Group,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of the financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables

from customers.
Trade and other receivables

Aged receivables are regularly monitored in order to highlight potential credit risks and also to assist in
cash flow planning, The Group’s invoicing system contains specific payment terms which are enforced
accordingly. Customers that are found to be in substantial arrears on settlement are contacted and should
they not regulate their position, the service provided is terminated after giving sufficient notice. The
monitoring is carried out by both the accounts and sales departments in order o ensure that the credit
limits and terms are adjusted accordingly, Customers that are considered to be a credit risk are referred to
the Chief Financial OfTicer for appropriate action.

The Group does not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables.

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in
respect of trade and other receivables. The main component of this allowance is a specific loss component
that relates 1o individually significant exposures,

Exposure to credit risk
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s exposure (o concentration of risk arises from activily exceeding 25% of its revenues. Al vear
end the Group had EURTI15.826 (2010: EURYE(0.323) owed by a major customer representing 38% (2010
56%) of the Group’s lotal trade receivables. This customer generated EURI.820.388 (201
EURZ2,393.532) of the Group’s total revenue, representing 44% (2010: 38%) of the Group’s total revenue.

The maximum exposure to credil risk is represented by the carrving amount of each financial asset in the
statement of financial position.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Group’s approach to managing hquidity is lo ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and siressed conditions, without
mcurring unacceplable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The directors have a reasonable expeciation that the Group has adequate resources to improve its liquidity
including the cash flows from the realisation of the assets held for sale. Furthermore, the Group maintains
lines of credit as disclosed in note 18 1o these financial statements.

Ch
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Liguidity risk - continned

Clontractual matirities

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued

The following are the undiscounted contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

Group

Year ended 30 June 2011
More
Carrving  Coolractual  Less than Gio 12 e 25  than 3
amcunt  Cash flows 6 months months vears vears yEars
EUR EUR ELIR EUR EUR EUR EUR
Bank loans 422,940 422,940 422,940 - - - -
Other barrowings 114,504 i 16,469 16,152 19035 36,847 44,435 -
Trade and other pavables 4,357,990 4. 357990 4.057.990 - 300,000 - —
Bank overdraft 355,484 355,484 355,484 - - - -
Amounts owed to related parties 717,056 940,442 - 241,086 - 099356 -
5,967,974 6,193,325 4,852,556 260,121 336,847 T43.791 -

Year ended 30 June 2010
hore
Carrying  Contractual Less than Hin 12 o2 2o s than 3
amount Cash flows & months months yedrs NEAars years
ELR EUR EUR EUR ELIR FUR ELR
Bank loans 779672 TT96T2 THLOT2 - - - -
Cither homowings [36,322 139,730 16826 16,172 a4, 194 42 538 -
Trade and other payables 2927245 2927245 2927245 - - - -
Bank overdrafl 47,896 97 896 Q7. RUG - - - -
Amounts owed o related parties 663,086 GH3 (86 - BL50BRA - - -
4609629 3,821,639  6R1.238 64,194 42538 -

4,606,221

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will
affect the Group’s income and equity. The Group had limited exposure to foreign exchange risk. while
interest on borrowings is denominated in Furo which matches the cash flows, generated by the
underlyving operations of the Group. The Group’s interest bearing loans and borrowings are priced at a

margin over the bank’s base rate, which reflects local market rates.

repriceable when the Company”s bankers amend their base rate.

Bank borrowings are hence

tn
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - cantinued
Currency risk
Exposure to currency 1isk

All the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in the functional currency except the following trade
receivables (based on notional amounts):

2011 2010
GBP Usp GBP usp
Trade receivables 83,850 - 120,677 -
Trade payables (47.227) (101.845) - (64.353)
36,623 (101.845) 120,677 {04.353)

The following significant exchange rates applied during the vear:

Average rate Reporting date spot rate

2011 2010 2011 2010
GBPI 0.8573 (L8792 0.9026 08175
LUSDI 1.3641 [.3%16 1.4453 1.2271

The Group’s exposure lo currency risk is therefore limited, as shown in the table above.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates. Notes 16, 18 and 20 incorporate information with respect to the Group/Company’s assets and
liabilities exposure to interest rates. Up to the reporting date the Group/Company did not have any
hedging policy with respect to interest rate risk as exposure to such risks was not deemed to be
significant by the Directors.

The interest rate risk and terms of repavment of interest-bearing instruments at reporting date are set out in
note 18 to the financial statements,

Interest rates in bank borrowings are established at a margin over the banker's base rate, whilst other
horrowings are established at a margin below the ECB’s base rate. Borrowings are hence repriceable when
base rates are amended.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group/Company’s profit before tax to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, based on the balances at year end.

Increase/ Effect on
decredse in (loss ) profit
basis points before tax

FURMOO
2011 =100/-104 (33
2010 — 00100 (710

L
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15,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued

Fair values

The fair values of the financial assets which are measured al amortised cost are not materially different

from their carrying amount.

Capital management

Capital includes equity attributable to equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Group
and the Company’s capital management is to improve its capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholder value. The Group and the Company manage their capital structure and make
adjustments to i, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust capital structure, the
Group and the Company may adjust dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives. policies or processes during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital total capital
plus net debt. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings. trade and other

pavables, less cash and cash equivalents,

2011 2010

EUR EUR

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings {note 18) 1,609,984 1,678,976

Trade and other payahles (note 20) 4,357.990 2,927,245
Less: bank balances {note 21) (75,480) (320,051

Met debt 5,892,494 4,286,170

Equity:Total Capital 2,693,541 4,123.805

Capital and net debt 8,586,035  §.409.975
31%

Gearing ratio 69%

th
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OTHER DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF THE LISTING RULES

Share Capital Structure

In the year under review, the Company’s authorised share capital was eleven million six hundred and forty six
thousand eight hundred and fifty Euro (EURI 1,646,850} divided into fifty million (50,000,000) ordinary
shares of EUR0.232937 per share. The Company’s issued share capital was seven million four hundred and
thirty thousand four hundred fifty seven Euro (EUR7.430,457) divided into thirty one million eight hundred
and ninety-nine thousand (31,899,000) ordinary shares having a nominal value EUR0.232937 per share.

All of the issued shares of the Company form part of one class of ordinary shares in the Company, which
shares are listed on the Malta Stock Exchange. All shares in the Company have the same rights and
entitlements and rank pari passu between themselves,

Dividends:

Voling Rights:

Pre-emption rights:

Transferability:

Mandatory takeover bids:

The shares carry the right to participate in any distribution of dividend
declared by the Company in general meeting on the recommendation of
the Diirectors.

Each share entitles its holder 1o one wote per share at meetings of
sharcholders.

None.

All the shares are freely transferable in accordance with the rules and
regulations of the Malta Stock Exchange, applicable from time to time.

There are no agreements berween sharcholders which are known to the
Company and may resull in restrictions on the transfer of securities and/or
voting rights.

Chapier 11 of the Listing Rules, implementing the relevant Squeeze-Out
and Sell-Out Rules provisions of Directive 2004/25/EC of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 21 April 2004, regulates the acquisition
by a person or persons acting in concert of the control of a company and
provides specific rules on takeover bids. squeeze-out rules and sell-out
rutes. The sharcholders of the Company may be protected by the said
Listing Rules in the event that the Company is subject to a Takeover Bid
{as defined therein). The Listing Rules may be viewed on the official
website {www.misa.com.mt) of the Listing Authority.

Holdings in excess of 5% of the share capital

On the basis of the information available to the Company, the direct and indirect sharcholders as at the 30 June
2001 and 31 July 2012 in excess of 5% of the share capital of the Company are the following:

JFC Holdings Lid
Go ple

30 June 2011 31 July 2012

Number of Holding Number of Holding
Shares % Shares %o
15,949 5010 S30.00 15,949,500 50.00
4,784,850 13,00 4,784 850 L5.00




OTHER DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF THE LISTING RULES - continued

Appointment and replacement of Directors (in terms of articles 54 to 60 of the Company’s Articles of
Association)

The Directors of the Company must be individuals.
1. The Directors shall be appointed as follows:

a. A Member holding not less than ten per cent of the equity securities having voting rights or a number
of Members who between them hold not less than ten per cent of the equity securities are entitled to
appoint one Drirector for every ten per cent holding, by letter to the Company. In the event that any
such appeintment is intended to fill a vacancy resulting from the retivement of a Director at an Aniual
General Meeting, any such letter may be sent in advance of the Annual General Meeting in question
and the appointment thereby has effect immediately at the end thereof;

b. Any Member who (i} does not qualify to appoint Directors in terms of the provisions abovementioned
{1a) and (ii) any Member whe, although qualified as aforesaid has not voted all his equity securities
having voting rights {or some of them) for the purposes of appointing a Director(s) pursuant thereto,
shall be entitled to vote such of his equity securities as shall not have been so voted on any resolution
or reselutions to fill vacancies in the Board of Directors.

An election pursuant to point 1{b) above shall be held every year. if there are vacancies on Board which are
not filled by the appointment of Directors pursuant to point 1{a) above,

Unless they resign or are removed, Directors shall hold office up until the end of the Annual General Meeting
next following their appointment. Directors whose term of office expires or who resign or are removed are
eligible for re-appointment.

In the event that there are, or are to be. vacancies in the Board of Directors which will not be filled by
appoiniments made pursuant to point 1{a) above, the Company shall grant a period of at least 14 days to
Members to nominate candidates for appointment as Directors. Such notice may be given by the publication of
an advertisement in at least 2 daily newspapers, All such nominations shall on pain of disqualification be made
on the form to be prescribed by the Directors from time to time and shall reach the office not later than 14 days
afier the publication of the said notice,

In respect of the appointment of Directors pursuant to point 1{b} above every Member or group of Members
holding alone or between them at least EUR232 937 in nominal value of equity securities entitled to vote in
terms of that point 1{b) above shall be entitled to nominate one person to stand for appointment as Director,

Unless a Member demands that a vote be taken in respect of all or any one or more of the nominees, in the
event that there are as many nominations as there are vacancies or less, no voting will take place and the
nominees will be deemed appointed Directors.

2. The Directors shall be replaced as follows:

a. Any Director may be removed at any time by the Member or Members by whom he was appointed.
The removal may be made in the same manner as the appointment.

b, Any Director may be removed at any time by the Company in general meeting pursuant to the
provisions of section 140 of the Companies Act. Cap. 386 of Malta.




OTHER DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF THE LISTING RULES - continued

Without prejudice to the provisions of the Companies Act, Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malta, the office of a
Director shall “ipso facto” be vacated:-

a. If by notice in writing to the Company, he resigns from the office of Director; or

b, If he absents himself from the meetings of the Directors for a continuous period of 3 calendar months
without leave of absence from the Directors and the Directors pass a resolution that he has, by reason
of such absence, vacated office: or

¢. If he violates the declaration of secrecy required of him under the Articles and the Directors pass a
resolution that he has so violated the declaration of secrecy; or

d. Ifhe is prohibited by or under any law from being a Director; or

€. IThe is removed from office pursuant to the Articles of Association or the Companies Act, Cap. 386
of the Laws of Malta; or

f. If he becomes of unsound mind, or is convicied of any crime involving public trust, or declared
bankrupt during his term of office and the Directors pass a resolution that he has for such reasons
vacated office.

A resolution of the Directors declaring a Director to have vacated office as aforesaid shall be conclusive as to
the fact and the grounds of vacation stated in the resolution.

Any vacancy among the Directors may be filled by the co-option of another person to fill such vacancy.

Such co-option shall be made by the Board of Directors. Any vacancy among the Directors filled as aforesaid,
shall be valid until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.

In the event that at any time and for any reason the number of Directors falls below the minimum number
established by the Memorandum of Association of the Company then, notwithstanding the provisions
regulating the quorum for meetings of the Directors, the remaining Directors may continue to act
notwithstanding any vacancy in their body, provided they shall, with all convenient speed. and under no
circumstances later than 3 months from the date upon which the number of Directors has fallen below the
minimum, convene a general meeting for the sole purpose of appoeinting/electing the Directors,

Amendment of the Memorandum and Articles of Association

In terms of the Companies Act, Cap. 386 of Malta. the Company may by extraordinary resolution at a general
meeting alter or add to its Memorandum or Articles of Association. An extraordinary resolution is one where:

a. it has been taken at a general meeting of which notice specifying the intention to propose the text of
the resolution as an extraordinary resolution and the principle purpose thereof has been duly given,

b. it has been passed by a shareholder or shareholders having the right to attend and vote at the meeting
holding in the aggregate not less than seventy five per cent (75%) in nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company represented and entitled 1o vote at the meeting and at least {ifty one per cent
{51%) in nominal value of all the shares issued by the Company and entitled to vote at the meeting,




OTHER DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF THE LISTING RULES - continued

Amendment of the Memorandum and Articles of Association - continued

Provided that, il one of the aforesaid majorities is obtained but not both, another meeting shall be convened
within thirty (30} days in accordance with the provisions for the calling of meetings to take a fresh vote on the
proposed resolution. At the second meeting the resolution may be passed by a shareholder or sharcholders
having the right to attend and vote at the meeting holding in the aggregate not less than seventy five per cenl
(75%) in nominal value of the shares issued by the Company represented and entitled to vote at the meeting,
However, if more than half in nominal value of all the shares issued by the Company having the right to vote
at the meeting is represented at that meeting, a simple majority in nominal value of such shares so represented

shall suffice.

Provided further that in respect of a resolution for a change in the public limited company status of the
Company the requisite majority shall be not less than ninety five per cent (95%) of the nominal value of the
shares entitled to attend and vote at the general meeting.

Board Member Powers

The Directors are vested with the management of the Company, and their powers of management and
administration emanate directly from the Memorandum and Articles of Association and the law. The Directors
are empowered to act on behalf of the Company and in this respect have the authority to enter into contracts,
sue and be sued in representation of the Company. In terms of the Memorandum and Articles of Association
they may do all such things that are not by the Memorandum and Articles of Association reserved for the
Company in general meeting or by any provision contained in any law in force at the time.

Subject te regulatory requirements, the Company may in accordance with Article 10 of its Articles of
Association, acquire its own shares.

Oither
There are no special control rights,

There are no significant agreements to which the Company is a party and which take effect, alter or terminate
upon a change of control of the Company following a take-over bid.

There are no agreements between the Company and its Board Members or emplovees by providing for
compensation if they resign or are made redundant without valid reason or if their employment ceases because
of a takeover bid.




STATEMENT BY THE DIRECTORS ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

Pursuant to Listing Rule 3.535.2, we, the undersigned, declare that to the best of our knowledge, the financial
statements included in the Annual Report and prepared in accordance with the requirements of International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union give a true and fair view of the assets,
liakilities, financial position and profit of the Group and that this report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and position of the Company, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by:

F ——

OSEPHFE
irector

ECH CONTI




SHAREHOLDER REGISTER INFORMATION

Directors” interests in the Company as at 30 June 2011 and as at 31 July 2012,

Ordinary shares Ordinary shares Movement in

Shareholder Range held as at held as at Shares held by
30.06.11 31.07.12 Directors

Chev. Anthony Demajo 1,350,750 1,350,750 -

Mr. Joseph Fenech Conti has a beneficial interest of 15,949,500 shares currently registered in the name of JFC
Holdings Limited. Mr. Walter Bonnici has a beneficial interest of 1,434,030 shares currently registered in the
name of GDL Trading and Services Limited. There have been no changes after year-end up to 31 July 2012,

Holders holding 5% or more of the Share Capital at 30 June 20011 and at 31 July 2012,

Ordinary Shares of EURD.2329374 each at:

30.06. 11 3L.07.12
Number Holding Number Holding
of shares (%a) of shares (%)
JFC Holdings Limited 15,949,500 50,00 15,949,500 50.00
GO P.L.C. 4,784,850 15.00 4,784,850 15.00

MNumber of holders

The total number of shareholders al vear end was 1,559 As at 31 July 2012, 1,557 sharcholders held the
Company’s issued share capital consisting of 31,899,000 shares. All shares are of equal class and carry equal

voling rights.

Number MNumber Movement in
Shareholder Range of holders at of Holders at holders increase
30.06.11 31.07.12 Hdecrease)
1 - 500 shares 388 387 (1)
501 - 1,000 shares 430 430 -
1001 - 5,000 shares 625 624 (1}
5001 and over 116 116 -
1.55% 1,557 2}

Company Secretary and Registered Address

Dr. Adrian Mallia
F26 Technopark
Mosta MST 3000
Malta




